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Financial Statements

Australian National

Audit Off

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Minister for Agriculture and Water Resources
Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements of the Department of Agriculture and Water Resources for the
year ended 30 June 2018:

(a) comply with Australian Accounting Standards — Reduced Disclosure Requirements and the Public
Governance, Performance and Accountability (Financial Reporting) Rule 2015; and

(b) present fairly the financial position of the Department of Agriculture and Water Resources as at
30 June 2018 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended.

The financial statements of the Department of Agriculture and Water Resources, which | have audited,
comprise the following statements as at 30 June 2018 and for the year then ended:

Statement by the Secretary and Chief Finance Officer;
Statement of Comprehensive Income;

Statement of Financial Position;

Statement of Changes in Equity;

Cash Flow Statement;

Administered Schedule of Comprehensive Income;
Administered Schedule of Assets and Liabilities;
Administered Reconciliation Schedule;

Administered Cash Flow Statement; and

Notes to the financial statements, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the Australian National Audit Office Auditing Standards, which
incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my report.
| am independent of the Department of Agriculture and Water Resources in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements for financial statement audits conducted by the Auditor-General and his
delegates. These include the relevant independence requirements of the Accounting Professional and
Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) to the
extent that they are not in conflict with the Auditor-General Act 1997. | have also fulfiled my other
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, were of most significance in
my audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of my audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon, and | do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

Accuracy and completeness of Own Source
Revenue

Refer to Note 2A ‘Sale of Goods and Rendering
of Services’; and Note 14 ‘Regulatory Charging
Summary’

Biosecurity fees are collected across the country
for both imports and exports through multiple
systems via manual and online applications. In
201718, total revenue reported from biosecurity
activities was $400.0 million.

The revenue collected from imports is dependent
on information provided by importers via a self-
assessment declaration. Agriculture undertake a
compliance program to obtain assurance that
declarations accurately report the value and
nature of goods imported.

| focused on this area due to the value of revenue
collected from biosecurity activities, the risk that
the self-assessment process results in under-
collection of import and export revenue and the
complex administrative and IT system
arrangements that support the collection of
export fees.

How the audit addressed the matter

To audit the accuracy and completeness of own
source revenue, | performed the following
procedures:

e assessed the governance and reporting
arrangements at Agriculture to obtain
assurance over the completeness of import
revenue;

e tested Agriculture’s assurance processes
over the interface and transfer of data
between revenue subsystems and the
finance system, including the IT general and
application controls for the system that
records receipts;

e assessed the design and effectiveness of

compliance programs that provide
management with assurance over the
completeness and accuracy of self-

assessment revenue; and

e tested a sample of revenue transactions and
year end accrual calculations, validating
them to export and import revenue systems
and Australian Bureau of Agricultural and
Resource  Economics and  Sciences
estimates.

Key audit matter

Accuracy and completeness of primary
industry levies and charges

Refer to Note 16A ‘Levies Fees and Charges’

For the 2017—18 reporting period the total levies
reported were $565.9 million.

Levies are collected from primary industry
producers and agents using a self-assessment
regime.

| considered this area a key audit matter as there
is a risk of under-collection arising from the
submission of inaccurate levy returns and
declarations, whether accidental or deliberate.
The rates charged and collected as levies and
charges are derived through a complex
estimation of anticipated agricultural production.

How the audit addressed the matter

To audit the accuracy and completeness of the
collection of primary industry levies and charges,
| performed the following audit procedures:

e assessed the operating effectiveness of the
IT general controls and the application
controls specific to the levies IT system
including an  assessment of the
completeness and accuracy of data
transferred between the levies IT system and
the finance system;

e evaluated the design and effectiveness of,
and tested on a sample basis, Agriculture’s
National Compliance Program which applies
a risk based approach to assessing the
accuracy and completeness of submitted
returns and levies collected;

tested a sample of revenue transactions to
supporting documentation and agreed
calculations and sighted approvals;

e agreed all changes of levy rates recorded in
the levies IT system to approvals signed by
the Minister; and

e assessed the methodology and
reasonableness of the inputs used for the
estimation of the year end accrual; and tested
post year end receipts, on a sample basis, to
assess if income was recorded in the correct
period.
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Key audit matter

Valuation of Loans to the State and Territory
Governments

Refer to Note 17A ‘Trade, Taxation and Other
Receivables’

| focused on this area given the significance of
this balance to Agriculture’s receivable balances
and the significant judgement applied to
assessing eligibility criteria, limits, lending terms
and the complexity of calculations in determining
the valuation and impairment of the loan
balances, some of which are categorised as
concessional loans.

For the year ended 30 June 2018 the receivables
balance was $804.9 million.

How the audit addressed the matter

To audit the valuation of the loans to State and
Territory governments | performed the following
audit procedures:

e evaluated the application of Agriculture’s
accounting policy for the recognition and
measurement of the fair value of new loans,
including any concessional component;

e assessed the reasonableness of
impairment assessment supporting
valuation of the loans;

e assessed Agriculture’s monitoring of loans
and service payments collected to assess the
accuracy and completeness of information
provided by the State and Territory
governments; and

e performed substantive testing, on a sample
basis, including recalculation of interest
revenue received and agreed approvals of
new loans or variations to existing loans to
supporting documentation.

the
the

Key audit matter

Valuation of the Jointly Controlled
Arrangements: River Murray Operations
(RMO) and Living Murray Initiative (LMI)

Refer to Note 18: ‘Reconciliation of the Opening
and Closing Balances of Property, Plant and
Equipment and Intangibles’

| considered this a key audit matter as the
balance is significant to Agriculture’s asset
balances and the Joint Venture arrangements
are managed by another entity on behalf of the
joint owners.

For the year ended 30 June 2018 the balances
that relate to these jointly controlled operations
are $528.5 million infrastructure assets and
$126.5 million water entitlements.

How the audit addressed the matter
| conducted the following procedures:

e evaluated the governance arrangements
supporting management’s oversight and
information-gathering processes over the
balances reported in the joint ventures’
financial statements;

e obtained the audited joint venture financial
statements as at 30 June 2018 and agreed
key balances to the associated balances and
disclosures in  Agriculture’s  financial
statements; and

e performed an assessment of the audited
financial statements of the joint venture which
included considering the  regulatory
framework under which the financial
statements were prepared, the accounting
policies adopted and evaluating the
competence and objectivity of the audit firm
performing the audit and the opinion
provided.

Department of Agriculture and Water Resources
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Accountable Authority’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

As the Accountable Authority of the Department of Agriculture and Water Resources the Secretary is
responsible under the Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013 for the preparation
and fair presentation of annual financial statements that comply with Australian Accounting Standards
— Reduced Disclosure Requirements and the rules made under that Act. The Secretary is also
responsible for such internal control as the Secretary determines is necessary to enable the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Secretary is responsible for assessing the Department of
Agriculture and Water Resources’ ability to continue as a going concern, taking into account whether
the entity’s operations will cease as a result of an administrative restructure or for any other reason.
The Secretary is also responsible for disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the assessment indicates that it is not appropriate.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with the Australian National Audit Office Auditing Standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian National Audit Office Auditing Standards, | exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control;

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control;

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Accountable Authority;

e conclude on the appropriateness of the Accountable Authority’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the entity to cease
to continue as a going concern; and

e evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that | identify during my audit.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, | determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. | describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, | determine that a matter
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should not be communicated in my report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Australian National Audit Office

Serena Buchanan
Senior Executive Director

Delegate of the Auditor-General

Canberra
31 August 2018
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES

Financial Statements
for the period ended 30 June 2018
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES
STATEMENT BY THE SECRETARY AND CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER

In our opinion, the attached financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018 comply with subsection 42(2) of
the Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013 (PGPA Act), and are based on properly
maintained financial records as per subsection 41(2) of the PGPA Act.

In our opinion, at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Department of
Agriculture and Water Resources will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall

Signed.... Signed...........o.fof [ fAeenenne
Dary! Quinlivan Scott Brown
Secretary Acting Chief F

} | August2018 Z(  August201B
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES

Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements and are required by section 42 of the Public
Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013 (PGPA).

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the:

e PGPA Financial Reporting Rule 2015 (FRR) applicable to reporting periods ending on or after 1 July
2017; and

e Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations — Reduced Disclosure Requirements issued by the
Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that apply for the reporting period.

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and are in accordance with the historical cost
convention, except for certain assets and liabilities at fair value. Except where stated, no allowance is made for
the effect of changing prices on the results or the financial position.

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and values are rounded to the nearest thousand
dollars unless otherwise specified.

New Australian Accounting Standards

No accounting standard has been adopted in the current reporting period earlier than the application date as
required by the standard.

All new, revised or amended standards and interpretations that were issued prior to the sign-off date and are
applicable in the current reporting period did not have a material effect, and are not expected to have a future
material effect on the department’s financial statements.

Comparative Figures
Certain comparatives amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s reporting presentation.

Taxation

The department is exempt from all forms of taxation except Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT) and the Goods and
Services Tax (GST). Revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are recognised net of GST except where the
amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office and for receivables and payables.

Reporting of Administered activities

Administered revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities and cash flows are disclosed in the administered schedules
and related notes. Except where otherwise stated, administered items are accounted for on the same basis and
using the same policies as for departmental items, including the application of Australian Accounting Standards.

Potential Breach of Section 83 of the Constitution

Section 83 (s83) of the Constitution provides that no amount may be paid out of the Consolidated Revenue Fund
except under an appropriation made by law. In 2018 the department identified one special appropriation with
statutory conditions for payments which could result in potential breaches of s83 of the constitution.

Total expenditure of $34 752 000 under the Farm Household Support Act 2014 was made during 2017-18. Of
this, overpayments of $7 394 000 have been recorded as debts as at 30 June 2018 and may be potential
breaches. A total of five actual breaches were identified (2017: 11), with a total value of $2 208 (2017: $2 052).

It should be noted that it is impossible to completely eliminate the potential for section 83 breaches for payments
made by the Department of Human Services on behalf of the department. In the majority of cases, information
provided by customers is relied upon to calculate the entitlements paid. This information, provided by customers
is not always accurate or is subject to changing circumstances which can result in a breach of s83 of the
constitution.

Department of Agriculture and Water Resources
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES

The department continues to review its processes and controls for all payments to minimise the possibility of
future breaches. The department will continue to monitor its level of compliance with s83 of the Constitution
across all legislation for which it is administratively responsible. Where possible, amendments to legislation will
continue to be progressed.

Events After the Reporting Period
Departmental

There have been no events after the reporting period that had the potential to significantly affect the ongoing
structure and financial activities of the department.

Administered

There have been no events after the reporting period that had the potential to significantly affect the ongoing structure
and financial activities of the department.

Department of Agriculture and Water Resources
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Overview

Departmental Financial Statements
Note 1: Expenses

Note 2: Income

Note 3: Financial Assets

Note 4: Non—Financial Assets

Note 5: Payables

Note 6: Provisions

Note 7: Restructuring

Note 8: Contingent Assets and Liabilities
Note 9: Key Management Personnel Remuneration
Note 10: Related Party Disclosures

Note 11: Financial Instruments

Note 12: Appropriations

Note 13: Special Accounts

Note 14: Regulatory Charging Summary
Administered Financial Schedules

Note 15: Administered — Expenses

Note 16: Administered — Income

Note 17: Administered — Financial Assets
Note 18: Administered — Non-Financial Assets

Note 19: Administered — Payables

Note 20: Administered — Contingent Assets and Liabilities

Note 21: Administered — Financial Instruments
Note 22: Administered — Appropriations
Note 23: Administered — Special accounts

Note 24: Interest in Cooperative Research Centre

159
162
168
170
172
174
177
178
179
180
181
181
182
184
185
186
187
193
195
197
201
205

207
208
210
212
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the period ended 30 June 2018

NET COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
Employee benefits
Suppliers
Grants
Depreciation and amortisation
Finance costs
Write-down and impairment of assets
Other expenses
Total expenses

Own-source income

Own-source revenue
Sale of goods and rendering of services
Interest
Other revenue

Total own-source revenue

Gains
Other gains
Total gains
Total own-source income

Net cost of services

Revenue from Government
Deficit

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Notes

1A
1B
1C

6B
1D
1E

2A
2B
2C

2D

Items not subject to subsequent reclassification to net

cost of services
Changes in asset revaluation reserves
Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss

Original
Budget Variance
2018 2017 2018 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
527 498 507 626 501 686 25812
238 157 242 385 275 250 (37 093)
12 654 9283 4 060 8 594
31485 29 634 27 220 4 265
34 120 250 ( 216)
5380 3700 5311 69
3 569 9573 - 3 569
818 777 802 321 813777 5000
400 004 389 251 389917 10 087
767 761 474 293
28 278 30275 16 182 12 096
429 049 420 287 406 573 22 476
945 2290 13 049 (12 104)
945 2290 13 049 (12.104)
429 994 422 577 419 622 10 372
388 783 379 744 394 155 (5372)
380 677 375 687 378 380 2297
(8106) (4 057) (15775) 7 669
- 1631 - -
- 1631 - -
(8106) (2426) (15775) 7 669

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 30 June 2018

Notes

ASSETS

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Other investments
Accrued interest
Accrued revenue

Total financial assets

Non-financial assets
Land, buildings and leasehold improvements
Property, plant and equipment
Intangibles
Inventories
Prepayments
Total non-financial assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Payables
Suppliers
Other payables

Total payables

Provisions
Employee provisions
Other provisions
Total provisions

Total liabilities
Net assets

EQUITY
Contributed equity
Asset revaluation reserves
Industry reserves
Accumulated deficit

Total equity

3A
3B

BT S

5A
5B

6A
6B

Financial Statements

Original
Budget Variance
2018 2017 2018 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
32069 27 652 3150 28 919
90 966 95 711 97 695 (6729)
16 500 16 000 16 000 500
194 200 203 (9
6 935 4693 3862 3073
146 664 144 256 120 910 25754
46 174 39763 44 373 1801
32744 36 672 32 528 216
98 764 85423 126 726 (27 962)
2275 2297 2292 (17)
8 822 8 086 6 122 2700
188 779 172 241 212 041 (23 262)
335443 316 497 332951 2492
17 800 21507 24 802 (7002)
34977 42 234 52 489 (17 512)
52 777 63 741 77 291 (24 514)
150 962 143 459 155 587 (4 625)
13 459 11 459 6 623 6 836
164 421 154 918 162 210 2211
217 198 218 659 239 501 (22 303)
118 245 97 838 93 450 24 795
149 357 120 844 145 580 3777
25 665 25 665 24 034 1631
54 322 43 931 38 481 15 841
(111.099) (92 602) (114 645) 3 546
118 245 97 838 93 450 24 795

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the period ended 30 June 2018

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received
Appropriations
Sale of goods and rendering of services
Interest
GST received
Other
Total cash received

Cash used
Employees
Suppliers
Grants
Other
Total cash used
Net cash from operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Cash received
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and
equipment
Proceeds from sales of investments
Interest

Total cash received

Cash used
Purchase of land and buildings
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of intangibles
Purchase of investments
Total cash used
Net cash used by investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash received
Contributed equity
Departmental capital budget
Total cash received
Net cash from financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash held
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the

reporting period

Notes

3A

Financial Statements

Original
Budget Variance
2018 2017 2017 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
384 001 366 609 379 664 4 337
395 182 378 120 384 272 10 910
351 331 474 (123)
22 477 23 258 30010 (7533)
24 506 24 225 15759 8747
826 517 792 543 810 179 16 338
520 507 510 417 500 287 20 220
265729 269 230 281 969 (16 240)
13 822 9 364 4 060 9762
1161 1091 - 1161
801 219 790 102 786 316 14 903
25 298 2441 23 863 1435
37 40 - 37
16 000 14 500 16 000 -
422 426 - 422
16 459 14 966 16 000 459
11 517 3246 11 800 ( 283)
6 287 9073 8 487 (2200)
26 862 19 870 30 600 (3738)
16 500 16 000 16 000 500
61 166 48 189 66 887 (5721)
(44 707) (33223) (50 887) 6 180
11631 6 062 15288 (3657)
12195 9481 11736 459
23 826 15 543 27 024 (3198)
23 826 15 543 27 024 (3198)
4417 (15 239) - 4417
27 652 42 891 3150 24 502
32 069 27 652 3150 28 919

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Department of Agriculture and Water Resources
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Budget Variance Commentary

The following tables provide a comparison of the original budget as presented in the 2017-18 Portfolio Budget
Statements (PBS) to the 2017-18 final outcome as presented in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards for the department. The Budget is not audited. Explanations of major variances are provided below.

Variances are considered to be ‘major’ based on the following criteria:

e the variance between budget and actual is greater than +/- 10% of the original budget and $10 million for a line
item; or

e the variance between budget and actual is greater than 2% of the relevant sub-total (i.e. total expenses, total
income, total assets or total liabilities) and $10 million; or

e an item below this threshold but is considered important for the reader’s understanding or is relevant to an
assessment of the discharge of accountability and to an analysis of performance of the department.

Major variances and explanations Affected line items

Statement of Comprehensive Income

Total expenses were $5.0 million higher than the original
budget estimate as a result of:

e Higher than budgeted employee benefits expenses e Total expenses
of $25.8 million due to the misallocation of $26.1

o . ; o Employee benefits expense
million to the original budget for suppliers.

e  After adjusting for the misallocation above, supplier
expenses was underspent by $11.0 million primarily
due to reduced contractor and consultant e Suppliers expense
expenditure as well as delays to expenditure for the
establishment of the Regional Investment
Corporation.

e Higher than budgeted grant expenses of $8.6 million
were primarily due to delays in establishing the e Grants expense
Regional Investment Corporation (RIC) which
resulted in the departmental transfer of
establishment funding as grants.

Total own-source income was $10.4 million higher than the e Total own-source income
original budget as a result of higher than budgeted sale of
goods and rendering of services of $10.1 million primarily
due to increased collections from Cost Recovery
Arrangements.

e Sale of goods and rendering of
services

The variance for other gains and other revenue was largely

attributable to the recognition of resources received free of e  Other gains
charge of $11.5 million as other gains in the budget and as
other revenue for actuals.

e  Other revenue

Department of Agriculture and Water Resources
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Financial Position

Cash and cash equivalents balance was $28.9
million higher compared with the original budget.
The variance predominantly relates to the change
in reporting requirements to reclassify special
account balances from Trade and other receivables
to Cash and cash equivalents, which occurred after
the preparation of the budget.

The greater than budgeted revenue for cost
recovery arrangements also contributed to the
higher than budgeted cash balance and industry
reserve equity balance.

Intangibles balance was $28.0 million lower than
the original budget due predominantly to a lower
opening balance based on information available at
the time of the budget preparation.

Total payables balance was $24.5 million lower
than the original budget due to the timing of

employee and supplier payments.

Cash Flow Statement

The net change in cash held during 2017-18 was
$4.4 million higher than the balanced position in the
original budget. The change was driven by delays
in expenditure on capital items.

e Cash and cash equivalents

e Trade and other receivables

e Industry reserves

e Intangibles

e Total payables
e  Supplier payables
e  Other payables

e Netincrease/(decrease) in cash held

Department of Agriculture and Water Resources
Annual report 2017-18



Financial Statements

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1: Expenses

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Note 1A: Employee Benefits
Wages and salaries 387 716 373 117
Superannuation
Defined contribution plans 39 587 37 304
Defined benefit plans 35693 38 656
Leave and other entitlements 48 348 37 254
Separation and redundancies 4070 3632
Other employee expenses 12 084 17 663
Total employee benefits 527 498 507 626
Accounting policy
Accounting policies for employee related expenses are contained in Note 6A.
Note 1B: Suppliers
Goods and services supplied or rendered
Analytical testing 11 337 9552
Contractors and consultants 36 297 43715
IT services 47 191 46 562
Legal expenditure 4087 2399
Office equipment, stores and consumables 6 107 5521
Travel 24 478 23955
Property operating expense 18 623 18 222
Quarantine services 3359 1833
Staff development and recruitment 8215 10 108
Other 13 085 13 606
Total goods and services supplied or rendered 172779 175473
Goods supplied 15 360 13 802
Services rendered 157 419 161 671
Total goods and services supplied or rendered 172779 175473
Other suppliers
Operating lease rentals 53 740 54 158
Workers compensation expenses 11 638 12754
Total other suppliers 65 378 66 912
Total suppliers 238 157 242 385

Department of Agriculture and Water Resources
Annual report 2017-18



Financial Statements

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Leasing commitments

The department in its capacity as lessee holds the following significant leasing arrangements:

. Leases of motor vehicles for operations - from 1 February 2013, the department is a party to the Fleet
Services Contract with SG Fleet Pty Ltd. An individual fixed rate is defined for each sub-agreement (vehicle).
Retention of the vehicle past expiry date may result in a new lease sub-agreement; and

. Leases for office, laboratory or other accommodation — lease contracts for accommodation are subject to
adjustment on an annual fixed basis, to market values and to consumer price index (CPI) increases. Renewal
options vary from 1 to 5 years.

Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non-cancellable operating leases are payable as
follows:

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Within 1 year 38 308 40 114
Between 1 to 5 years 95035 118 513
More than 5 years 10739 9341
Total operating leasing commitments 144 082 167 968

Accounting policy

Operating lease payments are expensed on a straight-line basis which is representative of the pattern of
benefits derived from the leased assets.

Note 1C: Grants
Public sector:

Australian Government entities (related parties) 7900 1099

State and Territory Governments 1419 1726
Private sector:

Non-profit organisations 2733 4533

For profit organisations 99 1026

Overseas 503 899
Total grants 12 654 9283

Note 1D: Write-Down and Impairment of Assets

Impairment on financial instruments 4320 1117
Impairment of intangibles and leasehold improvements 654 1639
Write-off of property, plant and equipment 406 944
Total write-down and impairment of assets 5380 3700

Note 1E: Other Expenses

Official Development Assistance 212 1084
Remission of fees 3297 8482
Other 60 7
Total other expenses 3 569 9573

Department of Agriculture and Water Resources
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2: Income

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Own-Source Revenue
Note 2A: Sale of Goods and Rendering of Services
Sale of goods 9 16
Rendering of services 399 995 389 235
Total sale of goods and rendering of services 400 004 389 251

Accounting policy

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when:
e the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer; and

e the department retains no managerial involvement or effective control over the goods.

Revenue from rendering of services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of contracts
at the reporting date. The stage of completion of contracts at the reporting date is determined by
reference to the proportion that costs incurred as at 30 June bear to the estimated total costs of the
transaction.

The department is responsible for the collection of fees for regulatory charging under the Export Control

Act 1982 and the Biosecurity Act 2015. Regulatory charging disclosure is included at Note 14.

Note 2B: Interest

Deposits 422 426
Penalties 345 335
Total interest 767 761

Accounting policy

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method.

Department of Agriculture and Water Resources
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2C: Other Revenue

Levies 10 427 10 341
State contributions 1765 1764
Sub-lease rental 1041 921
Resources received free of charge - Mickleham Post Entry Quarantine Facility 9 691 9 360
Resources received free of charge - airport accommodation 1155 2977
Resources received free of charge - ANAO fees 570 565
Other 3 629 4 347
Total other revenue 28 278 30 275

Accounting policy

Resources Received Free of Charge

reliably determined and the services would have been purchased if they had not been donated. Use of

revenue or gains depending on their nature.

Contributions of assets at no cost of acquisition or for nominal consideration are recognised as gains at
their fair value when the asset qualifies for recognition, unless received from another Government entity
as a consequence of a restructuring of administrative arrangements or as a contribution by owners in
accordance with Resource Management Guide (RMG) 123.

Resources received free of charge are recognised as revenue when, and only when, a fair value can be

those resources is recognised as an expense. Resources received free of charge are recorded as either

Gains

Note 2D: Other Gains
Gain from asset sales:

Proceeds from sale 37 40

Carrying value of assets sold ( 23) ( 6)
Gain on derecognition of makegood:

Carrying value of liability derecognised 274 482

Carrying value of asset derecognised ( 15) ( 219)
Workers compensation refund - 1523
Other 672 470
Total other gains 945 2290

Accounting policy

Sale of Assets

Gains from the disposal of assets are recognised when control of the asset has passed to the buyer.
Other Gains

Gains may be realised or unrealised and are recognised on a net basis.

Revenue from Government

Amounts appropriated for departmental appropriations for the year (adjusted for any formal additions
and reductions) are recognised as Revenue from Government when the department gains control of the
appropriation. Appropriations receivable are recognised at their nominal amounts.

Department of Agriculture and Water Resources
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 3: Financial Assets

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Note 3A: Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash in special accounts 30 087 25638
Cash on hand or on deposit 1982 2014
Total cash and cash equivalents 32 069 27 652
Note 3B: Trade and Other Receivables
Goods and services receivables in connection with
Goods and services 20 222 21949
Total goods and services receivables 20 222 21949
Appropriations receivables
Existing programs 49 112 52 741
Departmental capital budget - 459
Equity injection 16 390 11244
Total appropriations receivable 65 502 64 444
Other receivables
Statutory receivables 4 607 4283
Departmental supplementations - 3458
Other 1753 2785
Total other receivables 6 360 10 526
Total trade and other receivables (gross) 92 084 96 919
Less impairment allowance
Goods and services (1118) (1208)
Total impairment allowance (1118) (1208)
Total trade and other receivables (net) 90 966 95711
Reconciliation of the Impairment Allowance Account:
Movements in relation to goods and services impairment
Opening balance (1208) (1 942)
Amounts written off - 144
Amounts recovered and reversed 680 474
Decrease recognised in net cost of services ( 590) (. 884)
Closing balance (1118) (1208)
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Accounting policy
Loans and Receivables

Trade receivables have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and are
classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less impairment.

Receivables for goods and services, which have 30 day terms, are recognised at the nominal amounts
due less any impairment allowance account.

Accounting Judgements and Estimates

Collectability of debts is reviewed at end of the reporting period. Allowances are made when
collectability of the debt is no longer probable.

Department of Agriculture and Water Resources
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Accounting policy

Assets are recorded at cost on acquisition except as stated. The cost of acquisition includes the fair
value of assets transferred in exchange and liabilities undertaken. Non-financial assets are initially
measured at their fair value plus transaction costs where appropriate.

Assets acquired at no cost, or for nominal consideration, are initially recognised as assets and income
at their fair value at the date of acquisition, unless acquired as a consequence of restructuring of
administrative arrangements. In the latter case, assets are initially recognised as contributions by
owners at the amounts at which they were recognised in the transferor’'s accounts immediately prior to
the restructuring.

Asset Recognition Threshold

Purchases of property, plant and equipment are recognised initially at cost in the Statement of Financial
Position. The department applied the following asset recognition thresholds:

2018 2017
Land and buildings $0 $0
Leasehold improvements $150 000 $150 000
Property, plant and equipment $5 000 individual purchases/ $5 000 individual purchases/
$50 000 group purchases $50 000 group purchases
Internally developed software $200 000 $200 000
Purchased software $150 000 $150 000

Purchases under the applied thresholds are expensed in the year of acquisition.

The initial cost of an asset includes an estimate of the cost of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is located. This is particularly relevant to ‘make good’ provisions in property
leases taken up by the department where an obligation exists to restore the property to its original
condition. These costs are included in the value of the department’s leasehold improvements with a
corresponding provision for the ‘make good’ recognised.

The department’s intangible assets comprise internally developed software and purchased software for
internal use. These assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Revaluations and fair value measurement
All property, plant and equipment assets are measured at fair value.

Following initial recognition at cost, property, plant and equipment are carried at fair value less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Valuations are conducted
with sufficient frequency to ensure that the carrying amounts of assets do not differ materially from the
assets’ fair values at the reporting date. Independent revaluations for property, plant and equipment are
conducted every three years, however further valuations are undertaken dependent upon the volatility of
movements in market values for the relevant assets.

Revaluation adjustments are made on a class basis. Any revaluation increment is credited to equity
under the heading of asset revaluation reserve except to the extent that it reverses a previous
revaluation decrement of the same asset class that was previously recognised in the surplus or deficit.
Revaluation decrements for a class of assets are recognised in the surplus or deficit except to the
extent that they reverse a previous revaluation increment for that class.

Any accumulated depreciation at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of
the asset and the asset restated to the revalued amount.

Department of Agriculture and Water Resources
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements — valuation processes

The department engaged the service of Australian Valuation Solutions (AVS) to conduct a detailed
external valuation of non-financial assets (excluding intangibles) at 30 June 2017 and has relied upon
those outcomes to establish carrying amounts. The revaluation decrement recorded for land in 2017
was $80 000, decrement for buildings was $462 000, revaluation increment for leasehold improvements
was $2 742 000 and decrement for other property, plant and equipment was $1 294 000.

No valuation has been conducted for financial year 2017-18.

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciable property, plant and equipment assets are written-off to their estimated residual values over
their estimated useful lives to the department using, in all cases, the straight-line method of
depreciation.

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their anticipated useful life.

Depreciation rates (useful lives) and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and necessary
adjustments are recognised as appropriate. Depreciation rates applying to each class of depreciable
asset are based on the following useful lives.

2018 2017
Buildings 40-50 years 40-50 years
Leasehold improvements Lesser of useful life or Lesser of useful life or
lease term lease term
Property, plant and equipment 3 to 15 years 3 to 15 years
Internally developed software 5to 10 years 5to 10 years
Purchased software 3 years 3 years

Depreciation charges for 2018 of $31 485 063 were:
o funded by cost recovery arrangements of $13 916 730 (2017: $12 835 830); and
e unfunded of $17 568 333 (2017: $16 798 304).

Impairment

All non-financial assets were assessed for impairment at 30 June 2018. Where indications of
impairment exist, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated and an impairment adjustment made if
the asset’s recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. Value in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset.
Where the future economic benefit of an asset is not primarily dependent on the asset’s ability to
generate future cash flows, and the asset would be replaced if the entity were deprived of the asset, its
value in use is taken to be its depreciated replacement cost.

An impairment loss of $654 375 (2017: $2 376 000) was recognised in the operating resuilt.
Inventories
Inventories held for distribution are valued at cost, adjusted for any loss of service potential.

Costs incurred in bringing each item of stores inventory to its present location and condition are
recorded at purchase cost and managed on a first-in-first-out basis.

Department of Agriculture and Water Resources
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 5: Payables

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Note 5A: Suppliers
Trade creditors and accruals 1315 3508
Operating lease payable 16 485 17 999
Total suppliers 17 800 21507
Settlement is usually made within 30 days.
Note 5B: Other Payables
Salaries and wages 3042 3324
Superannuation 569 572
Separations and redundancies 1227 895
Accrued expenses 24 662 29 984
Unearned income 1248 5156
Statutory payables associated with employees 1844 480
Other 2385 1823
Total other payables 34977 42 234

Accounting policy

Separation and Redundancy

Provision is made for separation and redundancy benefit payments. The department recognises a
provision for termination when it has developed a detailed formal plan for the terminations, identified the
positions affected, assessed expressions of interest from employees and made formal offers.
Separation and redundancy is reported as a payable when an agreement has been reached with the
relevant employee.

Superannuation

The majority of the department’s staff are members of the Commonwealth Superannuation Scheme
(CSS), the Public Sector Superannuation Scheme (PSS) or the PSS accumulation plan (PSSap).
However, some staff have elected to be members of other private superannuation funds.

The CSS and PSS are defined benefit schemes for the Australian Government. The PSSap is a defined
contribution scheme.

The liability for defined benefits is recognised in the financial statements of the Australian Government
and is settled by the Australian Government in due course. This liability is reported in the Department of
Finance’s administered schedules and notes.

The department makes employer contributions to the defined benefits superannuation scheme at rates
determined by an actuary to be sufficient to meet the current cost to the Government. The department
accounts for the contributions as if they were contributions to defined contribution schemes.

The liability for superannuation recognised at 30 June 2018 represents outstanding contributions.

Department of Agriculture and Water Resources
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Note 6: Provisions

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Note 6A: Employee Provisions
Leave 150 962 143 459
Total employee provisions 150 962 143 459

Accounting policy

Liabilities for ‘short-term employee benefits’ and termination benefits due within twelve months of the
end of the reporting period are measured at their nominal amounts.

Leave

The liability for employee benefits includes provision for annual leave and long service leave. The leave
liabilities are calculated on the basis of employees’ remuneration at the estimated salary rates that will
apply at the time the leave is taken, including the department’s employer superannuation contribution
rates to the extent that leave is likely to be taken during service rather than paid out on termination.

The liability for long service leave has been determined by reference to the work of an actuary as at
30 June 2018. The estimate of the present value of the liability takes into account attrition rates and pay
increases through promotion and inflation.

Note 6B: Reconciliation Other Provisions

Provision for
lease Provision for

incentives restoration Total

$'000 $°000 $°000

As at 1 July 2017 5791 5668 11 459
Additional provisions made 5277 - 5277
Amounts used (1501) (1810) (3311)
Unwinding of discount or change in discount rate - 34 34
Total as at 30 June 2018 9 567 3892 13 459

Accounting policy
Provision for Restoration

The department currently recognises 46 (2017: 46) provisions for premises requiring restoration to their
original condition at the conclusion of the lease. The provisions reflect the present value of this
obligation.

Department of Agriculture and Water Resources
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 7: Restructuring

2018 2017
National Water Infrastructure
Development Fund
The Department of
Infrastructure, Regional
Development and Cities '

$'000 $'000

FUNCTIONS RELINQUISHED
Assets relinquished

Trade and other receivables 305 -
Total assets relinquished 305 -
Liabilities relinquished

Employee provisions 305 -
Total liabilities relinquished 305 -

Net liabilities relinquished - -

1. The National Water Infrastructure Development Fund function was relinquished to the Department of
Infrastructure, Regional Development and Cities during 2017-18 as a result of the Prime Minister's announcement
on 19 December 2017.

2. No administered assets and liabilities were transferred.

3. There were no Administrative Arrangement Order changes related to the department during 2016-17.
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Note 8: Contingent Assets and Liabilities

Quantifiable Contingencies
There were no quantifiable contingent assets or contingent liabilities at 30 June 2018 (2017: Nil).

Unquantifiable Contingencies

As at 30 June 2018, the department had a number of legal claims lodged against it for damages and costs. The
department is responding to these claims in accordance with its obligations under the Legal Services Directions
2017. Itis not possible to estimate the amount of any eventual payments in relation to these matters.

As at 30 June 2018, the department was investigating issues with billing of certain cost recovery charges. The

department is in the process of assessing any potential liability, and determining what, if any, additional action
may be required.

Proceedings have commenced in the Federal Court of Australia seeking compensation for alleged losses due to
the temporary suspension of exports of live animals to Indonesia that was put in place on 7 June 2011. The
quantum of any damages sought has not been quantified. The Department of Finance, which has responsibility
for Comcover (the Australian Government’s general insurance fund), has assumed insurance responsibility for
the potential claims under its insurance arrangements with the department.

Accounting policy

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets are not recognised in the statement of financial position but
are reported in the relevant notes. They may arise from uncertainty as to the existence of a liability or
asset or represent an asset or liability in respect of which the amount cannot be reliably measured.
Contingent assets are disclosed when settlement is probable but not virtually certain and contingent
liabilities are disclosed when settlement is greater than remote.
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 9: Key Management Personnel Remuneration

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly. This includes those personnel who have temporarily
performed the relevant roles for a period of eight weeks or more. The department has determined the key
management personnel to be all portfolio Ministers, the Secretary, members of the Executive Management
Committee and, their close family members and organisations they control. Key management personnel
remuneration is reported in the table below:

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Total short-term employee benefits 3186 2802
Post-employment benefits 583 522
Other long-term benefits 360 314
Total key management personnel remuneration expenses' 4129 3638

The total number of key management personnel that are included in the above table is 11, being eight
substantive officers for the full year, one substantive officer for part of the year and two acting officers for part of
the year (2017: 13, being nine substantive officers for the full year, two substantive officers for part of the year
and two acting officers for part of the year).

1. The above key management personnel remuneration excludes the remuneration and other benefits of the
Portfolio Minister. The Portfolio Minister's remuneration and other benefits are set by the Remuneration Tribunal
and are not paid by the entity.

Note 10: Related Party Disclosures

Related party relationships

The department is an Australian Government controlled entity. Related parties to this entity are Key Management
Personnel, including the Portfolio Minister and Assistant Ministers, the River Murray Operation (RMO) and Living
Murray Initiative (LMO) joint operations as well as other Australian Government entities.

Transactions with related parties

Given the breadth of Government activities, related parties may transact with the government sector in the same
capacity as ordinary citizens. These transactions have not been separately disclosed in this note.

Giving consideration to relationships with related entities, and transactions entered into during the reporting
period, the department has determined there are no related party transactions that require separate disclosure
(2017: Nil).
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Note 11: Financial Instruments

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Note 11A: Categories of Financial Instruments
Financial Assets
Held-to-maturity investments
Negotiable securities - certificates of deposit 16 500 16 000
Total held-to-maturity investments 16 500 16 000
Loans and Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents 32069 27 652
Trade receivables 19 104 20 741
Other financial assets 7129 4 893
Total loans and receivables 58 302 53 286
Total financial assets 74 802 69 286
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Trade creditors 1315 3508
Total financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 1315 3508
Total financial liabilities 1315 3508

At 30 June 2018, there are 11 (2017: 11) certificates of deposit maturing at different dates within the next 12 months. Interest
rates range from 2.51% to 2.72% (2017: 2.62% to 2.87%), payable upon maturity.

1. The net income from interest revenue for held-to-maturity investments in 2018 is $422 000 (2017: $426 000).

2. The net income from interest revenue for loans and receivables in 2018 is $345 000 (2017: $335 000).

Accounting policy

Financial assets

The department classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
e held-to-maturity investments;
. available-for-sale financial assets; and
e loans and receivables.

The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. Financial assets are recognised and derecognised upon trade date.

Effective Interest Method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest rate basis except when financial assets are recognised at fair value
through profit or loss. The department has no financial assets that are recognised at fair value through profit or loss.

Department of Agriculture and Water Resources
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Held-to-Maturity Investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates that the department has
the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as ‘held-to-maturity investments’. Held-to-maturity
investments are recorded at amortised cost using the effective interest method less impairment, with revenue
recognised on an effective yield basis.

The departmental held-to-maturity investments are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position as other
investments and are made up of negotiable certificates of deposit.

Available-For-Sale Financial Assets

‘Available-for-sale financial assets’ are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in
any of the other categories.

Available-for-sale financial assets are recorded at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are
recognised directly in reserves (equity) with the exception of impairment losses. Interest is calculated using the
effective interest method and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary assets are recognised directly in profit
or loss. Where the asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, part (or all) of the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in the reserve is included in the surplus or deficit for the period.

The department recognises administered other investments as available-for-sale.
Loans and Receivables

Trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market and are classified as ‘Loans and receivables’. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less impairment. Interest is recognised by applying the effective interest rate.

Impairment of Financial Assets
Financial assets are assessed for impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Financial assets held at amortised cost - If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred for
receivables or held to maturity investments held at amortised cost, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount is reduced by way of an allowance account. The loss
is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Available-for-sale financial assets - If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an available-for-sale
financial asset has been incurred, the amount of the difference between its cost, less principal repayments and
amortisation, and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in expenses, is transferred
from equity to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets held at cost - If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of
the impairment loss is the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate for similar assets.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ or ‘other financial
liabilities’. Financial liabilities are recognised and derecognised upon ‘trade date’. All of the department’s financial
liabilities are categorised as other financial liabilities.

Other Financial Liabilities

Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. These liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on
an effective yield basis.

The department recognises all financial liabilities at amortised cost. Liabilities are recognised to the extent that the
goods or services have been received (and irrespective of having been invoiced).
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 12: Appropriations

Note 12A: Annual and Unspent Appropriations (‘Recoverable GST exclusive')

2018 2017

$'000 $'000
Ordinary annual services
Opening unspent appropriation balance 55214 48 805
Annual Appropriation - Operating 381 223 375 687
Annual Appropriation - Capital budget’ 11736 9940
PGPA Act Section 74 receipts 24 383 28 646
PGPA Act Section 75 transfers? ( 546) -
Prior year PGPA Act section 75 transfers? (_305) -
Total appropriation available 471 705 463 078
Appropriation applied (current and prior years) (420 611) (407 864)
Closing unspent appropriation balance 51 094 55214
Balance comprises appropriations as follows:
Appropriation Act (No. 1) 2016-17 - 48 286
Appropriation Act (No. 3) 2016-17 - 4104
Supply Act (No. 1) 2016-17 - 810
Appropriation Act (No. 1) 2017-18 39 684 -
Appropriation Act (No. 3) 2017-18 5126 -
Appropriation Act (No. 5) 2017-18 4 302 -
Cash on hand 1982 2014
Total unspent appropriation - ordinary annual services 51094 55 214

' Departmental Capital Budgets are appropriated through Appropriation Acts (No.1,3,5). They form part of
ordinary annual services, and are not separately identified in the Appropriation Acts.

2 Appropriations reduced under Section 75 of the PGPA Act include: $546 000 relating to the current year and
$305 000 from prior year Departmental items.

The variance between amounts appropriated in 2018 and appropriation applied is $(4 120 000).

Other Services

Opening unspent appropriation balance 11244 4 603
Annual Appropriation - Equity injection 17 017 12703
Prior years Appropriation Acts repealed’ (_240) -
Total appropriation available 28 021 17 306
Appropriation applied (current and prior years) (11631) (6062)
Closing unspent appropriation balance 16 390 11244
Balance comprises appropriations as follows:

Appropriation Act (No. 4) 2013-14" - 240
Appropriation Act (No. 2) 2015-16 203 203
Appropriation Act (No. 4) 2015-16 2756 2756
Appropriation Act (No. 2) 2016-17 - 2595
Appropriation Act (No. 4) 2016-17 171 5319
Supply Act (No. 2) 2016-17 - 131
Appropriation Act (No. 2) 2017-18 9 637 -
Appropriation Act (No. 4) 2017-18 2083 -
Total unspent appropriation - other services 16 390 11 244

" Appropriation Act (No.4) 2013-14 was repealed by Appropriation Act (No.4) 2017-18 effective 28 March 2018.
The variance between amounts appropriated in 2018 and appropriation applied is $5 146 000.

Total unspent appropriation 67 484 66 458
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 12B: Special Appropriations (‘Recoverable GST exclusive')

Appropriation applied

2018 2017
Authority $'000 $'000
Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013, s. 58 (National
Residue Survey)
Prior year investments redeemed in current year ($16 000 000), Redemptions of
current year investments (gross) (nil). (16 500) (16 000)
Total special appropriations applied (16 500) (16 000)

Note 13: Special Accounts

Australian Quarantine and
Inspection Service Special National Residue Survey

Account (AQIS)’ Account (NRS)?

2018 2017 2018 2017

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance brought forward from previous period 24 401 36 225 1237 1524
Increases:
Appropriations credited to special account 139 094 132483 3 9
Other increases 381 127 361 984 27 570 26 205
Total increases 520 221 494 467 27 573 26 214
Available for payments 544 622 530 692 28 810 27738
Departmental decreases
Payments made to employees (302 921) (303 194) (1862) (1880)
Payments made to other (212 727) (203 097) (25 835) (24 621)
Total departmental decreases (515 648) (506 291) (27 697) (26 501)
Administered - - - -
Total administered decreases - - - -
Total decreases (515 648) (506 291) (27 697) (26 501)
Total balance carried to the next period 28 974 24 401 1113 1237
Balance made up of:
Cash held in the Official Public Account 26 369 21548 1113 1237
Cash held in entity bank accounts 2 605 2853 - -
Total balance carried to the next period 28 974 24 401 1113 1237

" Appropriation: Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013 section 78.

Establishing Instrument: Financial Management and Accountability Determination 2010/11 — Australian
Quarantine and Inspection Service Special Account Establishment 2010.

Purpose: For expenditure relating to the provision of quarantine and inspection services and payment of moneys
to the Consolidated Revenue Fund as agreed to by the relevant Minister and Minister for Finance.

2 Appropriation: Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013 section 80.
Establishing Instrument: National Residue Survey Administration Act 1992 section 6 (1).

Purpose: For the purposes of conducting national residue surveys and to provide for collection of the NRS levy
imposed by various acts.
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 14: Regulatory Charging Summar

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Amounts applied
Departmental
Annual appropriations 80 284 71987
Own source revenue 392 027 374 805
Total amounts applied 472 311 446 792
Expenses
Departmental 470 894 463 097
Total expenses 470 894 463 097
Revenue
Departmental 392 416 391 981
Total revenue 392 416 391 981
Amounts written off
Departmental 3980 9305
Total amounts written off 3980 9 305

Competitive Neutrality

The department operates a number of cost recovery arrangements across the Biosecurity, Export Certification
and other business services areas in accordance with the Australian Government Charging Framework and are
not for profit activities. The department is not subject to competitive neutrality arrangements for this reason.

Regulatory Charging Activities:

Dairy Exports Program Services Meat Export Program Services

Fish and Egg Export Program Services National Residue Survey Services

Grain and Seed Export Program Services Non-Prescribed Goods Export Program Services
Horticulture Exports Program Services Passenger Program Services

Import Clearance Program Services Post Entry Plant Quarantine Program Services
Levies Revenue Service Seaports Program Services

Live Animal Export Program Services Water Efficiency Labelling and Standards Scheme

Documentation (Cost Recovery Implementation Statements) for the above activities is available at:

e Water Efficiency Labelling and Standards Scheme www.waterrating.gov.au/about/review-evaluation/cost-recovery-
impact-statement

e Other regulatory charging activities www.agriculture.gov.au/fees/cost-recovery/

Industry Rebates and Program Results

Biosecurity, export certification and quota management, and National Residue Survey (NRS) cost recovered
activities are maintained on a program basis with many of the programs aligning to an industry sector. The
management of each program, including the establishment of the level and structure of fees and charges, is
conducted in consultation with an Industry Consultative Committee (ICC), as applicable, and the Department of
Finance.

Where fees and charges collected for a cost recovered program exceed its costs during a financial year, the
excess revenue is reported in the total comprehensive income (loss) for the period. The amount of excess
revenue is transferred from retained earnings into an industry reserve.
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES
ADMINISTERED SCHEDULE OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the period ended 30 June 2018

Original
Budget Variance
2018 2017 2018 2018
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
NET COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
Levy disbursements and Commonwealth
contributions 15A 875716 826 072 843 184 32532
Grants 15B 267 596 303 999 407 986 (140 390)
Payments to corporate Commonwealth entites ~ 15C 127 062 89 296 125 074 1988
Suppliers 15D 30 499 42 314 36 654 (6 155)
Direct personal benefits 33735 60 833 36 607 (2872)
Assets transferred to related entities 18 210 334 165 581 498 261 (287 927)
Depreciation and amortisation 18 7753 7737 7 759 ( 6)
Concessional loan discount 1006 3046 694 312
Write-down and impairment of assets 15E 7 585 6725 - 7 585
Other expenses 234 - - 234
Total expenses 1561 520 1505 603 1956 219 (394 699)
Income
Revenue
Taxation revenue
Levies, fees and charges 16A 565 931 555 436 536 868 29 063
Total taxation revenue 565 931 555 436 536 868 29 063

Non-taxation revenue

Interest 16B 23919 15 689 23 006 913

Other revenue 16C 22 454 19 948 9 967 12 487
Total non-taxation revenue 46 373 35637 32973 13 400
Total revenue 612 304 591 073 569 841 42 463
Gains

Other Gains 16D 96 386 129 895 127 261 (130 875)
Total gains 96 386 129 895 127 261 (30 875)
Total income 708 690 720 968 697 102 11 588
Net cost of services 852 830 784 635 1259 117 (406 287)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items not subject to subsequent reclassification to net
cost of services

Administered revaluations taken to reserves

Non-financial assets 2448 13 908 - 2448
Other investments 30 709 21957 - 30709
Total other comprehensive income 33157 35 865 - 33 157
Total comprehensive loss (819 673) (748770) (1259 117) 439 444

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES
ADMINISTERED SCHEDULE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

as at 30 June 2018
Original
Budget Variance
2018 2017 2018 2018
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 589 698 166 435 - 589 698
Trade, taxation and other receivables 17A 852 463 733 552 1114 678 (262 215)
Other investments 17B 400 222 369 513 307 545 92 677
Other financial assets 17C 69 313 67 164 67 188 2125
Total financial assets 1911 696 1336 664 1489 411 422 285
Non-financial assets
Land 18 1467 1467 1467 -
Infrastructure 18 524 541 528 639 508 434 16 107
Plant and equipment 18 1715 1664 - 1715
Flooding easements 18 814 814 - 814
Intangibles 18 126 520 125 047 138 145 (11 625)
Prepayments 15 665 16 082 20 535 (4 870)
Total non-financial assets 670 722 673 713 668 581 2141
Total assets administered on behalf of
Government 2582 418 2010377 2 157 992 424 426
LIABILITIES
Payables
Levy disbursements and Commonwealth
Contributions 19A 101 196 92 380 101 381 ( 185)
Grants 19B 3368 7 867 44 495 (41127)
Suppliers 298 1504 2012 (1714)
Personal benefits 654 1270 1015 ( 361)
Corporate Commonwealth Entities 1953 - - 1953
Other payables 72 808 - 72
Total payables 107 541 103 829 148 903 (41 362)
Total liabilities administered on behalf of
Government 107 541 103 829 148 903 (41 362)
Net assets 2474 877 1906 548 2 009 089 465 788

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES

BUDGET VARIANCE COMMENTARY - ADMINISTERED

as at 30 June 2018

Budget Variance Commentary

The following tables provide a comparison of the original budget as presented in the 2017-18 Portfolio Budget
Statements (PBS) to the 2017-18 final outcome as presented in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards for the department. The Budget is not audited. Explanations of major variances are provided

below.

Variances are considered to be ‘major’ based on the following criteria:

e the variance between budget and actual is greater than +/- 10% of the original budget and $10 million for a

line item; or

e the variance between budget and actual is greater than 2% of the relevant sub-total (i.e. total expenses,

total income, total assets or total liabilities) and $10 million; or

e an item below this threshold but is considered important for the reader’s understanding or is relevant to an
assessment of the discharge of accountability and to an analysis of performance of the department.

Major variances and explanations

Affected line items

Administered Schedule of Comprehensive Income

Total expenses were $394.7 million lower than the original budget
predominantly as a result of:

e Lower than budgeted assets transferred to related entities
expenses of $287.9 million and grant expenses of $140.4
million, arising from delays to the implementation of the
Murray-Darling Basin Plan and the delay to secure support
for critical amendments introduced in Parliament.

o Partially offset by higher than budgeted levy disbursements
and Commonwealth contributions expenses of $32.5 million
mainly due to higher than anticipated transactions in the wool
and grain commodities.

Total expenses

Levy disbursement and
Commonwealth
contributions expenses

Grant expenses

Assets transferred to
related entities expenses

Total income was $11.6 million higher than the original budget
predominantly as a result of:

e Higher than budgeted levies, fees and charges of $29.1
million mainly due to higher than anticipated transactions in
the wool and grain commodities.

e Higher than budgeted other revenue of $12.5 million mainly
due to debts raised against recipients of Farm Household
Allowance.

o Partially offset by lower than budgeted other gains of $30.9
million due to reduced water entitlements transferred to the
department through water programs, arising from delays to
the implementation of the Murray-Darling Basin Plan and the
delay to secure support for critical amendments introduced
into Parliament.

Total income

Levies, fees and charges
revenue

Other revenue

Other gains

Total other comprehensive income was $33.2 million higher than
the original budget. This was mainly due to increases to the net
assets of portfolio corporate Commonwealth entities.

Total other comprehensive
income

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES
BUDGET VARIANCE COMMENTARY — ADMINISTERED
as at 30 June 2018

Administered Schedule of Assets and Liabilities

Total financial assets balance was $422.3 million higher than the

original budget. This variance was predominantly due to: . .
e Total financial assets

e Higher than budgeted cash and cash equivalents balance by
$589.7 million was mainly due to the reclassification of
special account balances as a result of a change in reporting
requirements, which occurred after the preparation of the
budget.

e Cash and cash equivalents

e Trade, taxation and other
receivables

e Other investments
e Lower than budgeted other investments balance by $92.7

million due to increases to portfolio corporate Commonwealth
entities’ net assets.

e Lower than budgeted trade, taxation and other receivables
balance by $262.2 million mainly due to:

o Transfer of $100 million from the National Water
Infrastructure Loan Facility to the Department of
Infrastructure, Regional Development and Cities that
was not anticipated in the budget.

o Decreased loans to State and Territory Governments
of $171.2 million which experienced lower take up
rates and higher repayments than anticipated.

Total non-financial assets balance was $2.1 million higher than the

original budget. This variance was predominantly due to e Total non-financial assets
unbudgeted changes to the department’s share of joint operations’
assets which caused a higher than budgeted balance in
Infrastructure by $16.1 million, partially offset by a lower than o Intangibles
budgeted balance in Intangibles by $11.6 million.

e Infrastructure

Total payables balance was $41.4 million lower than the original o Total payables
budget. The variance related mainly to the timing of grant
payments which occurred earlier than anticipated. o Grant payables

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES

ADMINISTERED RECONCILIATION SCHEDULE
for the period ended 30 June 2018

Opening assets less liabilities as at 1 July
Net cost of services
Income
Expenses
Payments to entities other than corporate Commonwealth entities
Payments to corporate Commonwealth entities
Other comprehensive income
Revaluations transferred to reserves
Non-financial assets
Other investments
Transfers (to)/from the Australian Government
Appropriation transfers from OPA
Administered assets and liabilities appropriations
Annual appropriations
Payments to entities other than corporate Commonwealth entities
Payments to corporate Commonwealth entities
Special appropriations (limited)
Payments to entities other than corporate Commonwealth entities
Special appropriations (unlimited)
Payments to entities other than corporate Commonwealth entities
Payments to corporate Commonwealth entities
Special account payments
Appropriation transfers to OPA
Transfers to OPA
Personal Benefits - Withholding
Other movements
Closing assets less liabilities as at 30 June

2018 2017
$'000 $000
1906 548 1593 836
708 690 720 968

(1 434 458) (1 416 307)
(127 062) (89 296)
2 448 13 908

30 709 21 957

307 022 279 090
377 744 459 600
125 109 89 296
430 000 110 000
572 493 562 744
325 981 317 212

- 719

(749 886) (757 033)
(461) ( 143)

= (3)
2474877 1906 548

Accounting Policy

Administered Cash Transfers to and from the Official Public Account (OPA)

schedule.

Revenue collected by the department for use by the Government rather than the department is administered
revenue. Collections are transferred to the OPA which is maintained by the Department of Finance. Conversely,
cash is drawn from the OPA to make payments under Parliamentary appropriation on behalf of Government. These
transfers to and from the OPA are adjustments to the administered cash held by the department on behalf of the
Government and reported as such in the schedule of administered cash flows and in the administered reconciliation

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES
ADMINISTERED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the period ended 30 June 2018

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received
Taxes 560 841 548 991
GST received 85 303 81 656
Other 12 961 19 478
Total cash received 659 105 650 125
Cash used
Levy disbursements and Commonwealth contributions 870 220 828 087
Grants 358 789 417 176
Suppliers 31268 46 320
Personal benefits 34 752 65 421
Payments to corporate Commonwealth entities 125 109 89 296
Other 234 -
Total cash used 1420 372 1446 300
Net cash used by operating activities (761 267) (796 175)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash received
Repayments of loans to States and Territories 82 181 107 734
Interest received from loans to States and Territories 20908 16 012
Total cash received 103 089 123 746
Cash used
Loans made to States and Territories 190 000 255 000
Purchase of Intangibles 117 022 24 085
Total cash used 307 022 279 085
Net cash used by investing activities (203 933) (155 339)
Net decrease in cash held (965 200) (951 514)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 166 435 56 321
Cash from Official Public Account for
- Appropriations 2138 349 1817 942
- Special accounts - 719
Total cash from Official Public Account 2138 349 1818 661
Cash to Official Public Account for:
- Appropriations 749 886 757 033
Total cash to Official Public Account 749 886 757 033
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 589 698 166 435

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 15: Administered — Expenses

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Note 15A: Levy Disbursements and Commonwealth Contributions
Levy disbursements
Corporate Commonwealth entities 188 129 211 922
Other 374 224 338 143
Commonwealth Contributions
Corporate Commonwealth entities 121 832 117 826
Other 191 531 158 181
Total levy disbursements and Commonwealth contributions 875716 826 072
Note 15B: Grants
For profit organisations 163 025 176 933
Non-profit organisations 71 312 102 388
Australian Government entities (related parties) 17 989 16 306
State and Territory Governments 15 032 6231
Local Governments 920 1972
Other 148 169
Total grants 267 596 303 999

Accounting policy

performed or criteria satisfied, this is considered a commitment.

The department administers a number of grant and subsidy schemes on behalf of the Government. Grant and
subsidy liabilities are recognised to the extent that (i) the services required to be performed by the grantee have
been performed; or (ii) the grant eligibility criteria have been satisfied, but payments due have yet to be made.
When the Government enters into an agreement to make these grants and services but services have not been

Note 15C: Payments to Corporate Commonwealth Entities

Murray-Darling Basin Authority (MDBA) 90 611 72 699
Wine Australia 16 014 2000
AgriFutures Australia 10 342 10 170
Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority (APVMA) 6190 136
Fisheries Research and Development Corporation (FRDC) 3905 4291
Total payments to corporate Commonwealth entities 127 062 89 296

Accounting policy

department is included in the amounts in Note 22.

Payments to corporate Commonwealth entities from amounts appropriated for that purpose are classified as
administered expenses, equity injections or loans of the relevant portfolio department. The appropriation to the
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 15D: Suppliers
Goods and services supplied or rendered
Membership fees
Administration charge - loans
Contractors
Consultants
Purchase of data
Other
Total goods and services supplied or rendered

Goods supplied
Services rendered
Total goods and services supplied or rendered

Total supplier expenses

Note 15E: Write-Down and Impairment of Assets

Debt waiver of personal benefits receivable

Impairment on financial assets

Debt waiver - under Primary Industries Levies and Charges Collection Act 1991
Write-off of non-financial assets

Total write-down and impairment of assets

Department of Agriculture and Water Resources
Annual report 2017-18

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
16 548 15903
4853 4428
4 258 5043
2072 8 276
13 5009
2755 3 655
30 499 42 314
742 5 836
29 757 36 478
30 499 42 314
30 499 42 314
4109 4874
2800 752
463 598
213 501

7 585 6725
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 16: Administered — Income

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Revenue
Taxation Revenue
Note 16A: Levies, Fees and Charges
Primary industry levies 553 062 544 040
Primary industry charges 12 869 11 396
Total levies, fees and charges 565 931 555 436

Figure 1 shows levy revenue by industry in 2017-18

Fisharies | 3138
Game animals | $177
Other rural industies | 5508
Live animel export ] 54,036
Forestry [ $7.241
Foutry [ $10.120
wine [N 520584
-"!Fituluétm-iﬁﬂr _ 233,402
Livestock processing [ 537575
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Avimal prodcts. | S 07 262
Lvestock ransecson [ 23,567
Fimd crops _ 187,037

& .r ¥,
Y, Y, Y, ", Y, %, Y,
$000

Non-Taxation Revenue

Note 16B: Interest

Loans 21993 15 570
Unwinding of concessional loan discount 1632 35
Other 294 84
Total interest 23919 15 689
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2018 2017

$'000 $'000
Note 16C: Other Revenue
Refunds of prior year payments 17 667 16 168
Registration Fees 1570 1526
Funds from the National Heritage Trust 889 -
Other 2328 2 254
Total other revenue 22 454 19 948
Note 16D: Other Gains
Resources received free of charge - water entitlements 92 915 125 188
Joint operation gains 3343 4707
Other 128 -
Total other gains 96 386 129 895

Accounting policy

All administered revenues are revenues relating to ordinary activities performed by the department on behalf of
the Australian Government. As such, administered appropriations are not revenues of the individual entity that
oversees distribution or expenditure of the funds as directed.

Revenue also includes contributions from State and Territory governments in connection with the performance
of the Water Efficiency Labelling and Standards (WELS) Regulator, Lake Eyre Basin Community Advisory
Committee and the Great Artesian Basin Coordinating Committee.

Levies, Fees and Other Charges

Levies are collected by the department on behalf of industry and are disbursed, in conjunction with any relevant
Commonwealth contribution, to special accounts, statutory marketing authorities, Commonwealth research and
development corporations, and other industry boards and authorities.

The levels of levy revenue and disbursement during the year are monitored by the department with reference to
production forecasts prepared by the Australian Bureau of Agricultural and Resource Economics and Sciences
(ABARES), the Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS) and field based data supplied by the department’s
regional office compliance officers.

Levies are recognised on an accrual basis when the following conditions apply:

e the levy payer/commodity group can be reliably identified;

e the amount of levy payable can be reliably measured; and

e itis probable that the levy payable will be collected.

The value of the accrual recognised (2018: $69 313 000, 2017: $67 164 000) relies on the estimation of the
volume and value of probable future levy return lodgements, which relate to leviable commodity transactions
that have occurred in the current financial year.

Also forming part of the department’s other charges are Biosecurity penalties, fines and forestry import charges
collected by the Department of Home Affairs. As reporting is the responsibility of the principal department,
these collections are recognised in the department's financial statements as administered items.

Resources Received Free of Charge

Contributions of assets at no cost of acquisition or for nominal consideration are recognised as gains at their
fair value when the asset qualifies for recognition, unless received from another Government entity as a
consequence of a restructuring of administrative arrangements. Water entitlement assets valued at

$92 915 000 were acquired in 2018 (2017: $125 188 000) for no cost under the Sustainable Rural Water Use
and Infrastructure Program (SRWUIP) grant program and are included in asset additions in Note 18.
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DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 17: Administered — Financial Assets

2018 2017
$'000 $'000

Note 17A: Trade, Taxation and Other receivables

Goods and services 736 927
Total goods and services receivables 736 927
Taxation receivables

Levies, fees and charges 12 283 10 958
Total taxation receivables 12 283 10 958
Loans

State and Territory Governments 804 949 696 504
Total loans 804 949 696 504
Other receivables

Personal benefits 7 394 2 605

Statutory receivables 16 486 12 565

Interest receivable from loans 3982 2603

Other receivables 10 801 10 227
Total other receivables 38 663 28 000
Total trade, taxation and other receivables (gross) 856 631 736 389
Less impairment allowance

Goods and services ( 277) ( 124)

Personal benefits (1623) ( 854)

Levies fees and charges (1858) (1859)

Loans ( 410) -
Total impairment allowance (4168) (2837)
Total trade, taxation and other receivables (net) 852 463 733 552
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Reconciliation of the Impairment Allowance

Movements in relation to 2018

Taxation Other
receivables Loans receivables Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Opening balance (1859) - ( 978) (2837)
Amounts recovered and reversed - - 124 124
(Increase) / decrease recognised in net cost
of services 1 (410) (1,046) (1 455)
Closing balance (1858) ( 410) (1900) (4168)
Movements in relation to 2017
Taxation Other
receivables Loans receivables Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Opening balance (1688) - (1065) (2753)
Amounts written off 164 - - 164
(Increase) / decrease recognised in net cost
of services ( 335) - 87 (. 248)
Closing balance (1.859) - (1978) (2837)

At 30 June 2018, five loan schemes were in place. Loans to State and Territory Governments were made under

the Farm Finance and Drought loan schemes for periods up to 5 years and the Dairy Recovery, Drought
Recovery and Farm Business loan schemes for up to 10 years. No security is required on these loans to
government agencies, but a charge over assets is held by jurisdictions issuing the loans to farmers.

Loans are subject to biannual impairment assessments. If a State or Territory Government is unable to recover

loans provided to program recipients, the State or Territory Government's respective liability to the
Commonwealth will be reviewed in accordance with the applicable loan agreements.

Principal is repaid in full at maturity. Interest rates were fixed with a 6 monthly review period. Effective interest
rates averaged 3.53% (2017: 3.39%) for Farm Finance loans, 3.01% (2017: 2.88%) for Drought loans, 2.67%
(2017: 2.45%) for Dairy Recovery and Drought Recovery loans, and 3.08% (2017: 2.50%) for Farm Business

loans. Interest payments are due on the 10th day of the month following collection.
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2018 2017

$'000 $'000
Note 17B: Other Investments
AgriFutures Australia 22 555 22 410
Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority (APVMA) 7 203 7 688
Cotton Research and Development Corporation (CRDC) 37704 37 536
Fisheries Research and Development Corporation (FRDC) 24 335 19725
Grains Research and Development Corporation (GRDC) 199 363 205 828
Murray-Darling Basin Authority (MDBA) 79 394 63 215
Regional Investment Corporation 6793 -
Wine Australia 22 875 13 111
Total other investments 400 222 369 513

Accounting policy
Administered Investments

Administered investments in subsidiaries are not consolidated because their consolidation is relevant
only at the Whole of Government level.

Administered investments are measured at fair value as at 30 June 2018. Fair value has been taken to
be the Australian Government’s proportional interest in the net assets of the entities as at the end of
reporting period. All Corporate Commonwealth Entities are fully owned.

The principal activities of each of the department’s administered investments in Corporate Commonwealth
Entities are as follows:

AgriFutures Australia

Principal Activities: Increased knowledge that fosters sustainable, productive and profitable new and existing rural
industries and furthers understanding of national rural issues through research and development in government-
industry partnership.

Australian Pesticides and Veterinary Medicines Authority (APVMA)

Principal Activities: Protection of the health and safety of people, animals, the environment, and agricultural and
livestock industries through regulation of pesticides and veterinary medicines.

Cotton Research and Development Corporation (CRDC)

Principal Activities: Adoption of innovation that leads to increased productivity, competitiveness and
environmental sustainability through investment in research and development that benefits the Australian cotton
industry and the wider community.

Fisheries Research and Development Corporation (FRDC)

Principal Activities: Increased economic, social and environmental benefits for Australian fishing and aquaculture,
and the wider community, by investing in knowledge, innovation, and marketing.

Grains Research and Development Corporation (GRDC)

Principal Activities: New information and products that enhance the productivity, competitiveness and
environmental sustainability of Australian grain growers and benefit the industry and wider community, through
planning, managing and implementing investments in grains research and development.

Murray-Darling Basin Authority (MDBA)

Principal Activities: Equitable and sustainable use of the Murray-Darling Basin by governments and the
community including the development and implementation of a Basin Plan, operation of the River Murray system,
shared natural resource management programs, research, information and advice.

Regional Investment Corporation

Principal Activities: Encourage growth, investment and resilience in Australian farm businesses and rural and
regional communities by delivering the Commonwealth’s farm business concessional loans and the National
Water Infrastructure Loan Facility.

Wine Australia

Principal Activities: Foster and enable a competitive Australian wine industry by investing in research and
development, building markets, disseminating knowledge and ensuring compliance.
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Note 17C: Other Financial Assets
Accrued primary industry levies
Accrued primary industry charges
Total other financial assets

Department of Agriculture and Water Resources
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2018 2017
$'000 $'000
67 322 65 225
1991 1939
69 313 67 164
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Disposal of non-financial assets

No property, plant and equipment is expected to be sold or disposed of within the next 12 months. Water
entittements acquired as part of the department’s responsibility with regard to the Water Act 2007 will be
transferred to the Department of the Environment and Energy upon finalisation.

Revaluations of non-financial assets

Revaluations are conducted in accordance with the revaluation policy.

Infrastructure assets held by the River Murray Operation (RMO) joint operation are revalued by an independent,
external valuer on a three year cycle. For the year ended 30 June 2018 an independent valuation was performed
by Cardno (Qld) Pty Ltd. Refer to the Joint Operations section below for more information on joint operation
arrangements. A revaluation increment of $2 448 000 was recognised by the department.

All increments and decrements were credited to the asset revaluation surplus by asset class and included in the
other comprehensive income section of the Administered Schedule of Comprehensive Income. No decrements
were expensed.

Contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant, equipment and intangible assets

There were $90 680 000 of contractual commitments for the acquisition of water entitiements as at 30 June 2018
(2017: $38 001 116).

There were no contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2018.

Joint operations

The Australian Government is a joint operator in the following jointly controlled operations and assets:
Share of Output

Principal 2018 2017

activity % %

River Murray Operations joint operation Asset Management 20 20
Living Murray Initiative joint operation Asset Management 20 20

The Australian Government’s interest, as a joint operator, in assets employed in the above joint operations is
detailed below. The amounts are included in the financial statements under their respective asset categories:

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Joint Operations
Non-current assets
Land and buildings
River Murray Operations 1467 1467
Infrastructure
River Murray Operations 524 541 528 639
Plant & equipment
River Murray Operations 1715 1664
Flooding easements
River Murray Operations 814 814
Water entitlements
Living Murray Initiative 126 481 124 593
Total non-current assets 655 018 657 177
Total assets 655 018 657 177
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Accounting policy

Joint Operations

The Australian Government is an operator of jointly controlled assets held in the River Murray
Operations (RMO) and Living Murray Initiative (LMI) joint operations. The Australian Government has
control over its share of future economic benefits through its 20% share of the jointly controlled assets.
The Australian Government recognises its share of the jointly controlled assets in its financial
statements, classified according to the nature of the assets, its share of any liabilities incurred in respect
of the joint operation and any income from the sale or use of its share of the output of the joint operation,
together with its share of any expenses incurred by the joint operation.

Land, plant and equipment and flooding easements

Land, plant and equipment, and flooding easements assets recognised by the department represent the
Commonwealth Government's share in the RMO.

RMO land, plant and equipment, and flooding easements are carried at cost, consistent with the FRR.
Infrastructure

Infrastructure assets recognised by the department represent the Commonwealth Government's share
in the RMO.

RMO infrastructure assets are recorded at fair value in accordance with AASB116 Property, Plant and

Equipment, and AASB13 Fair Value Measurement. Infrastructure assets are valued by an independent
external valuer on behalf of the RMO every three years. In the intervening two years of the revaluation

cycle, values are assessed by means of an internal management valuation. The latter is an indexation

based valuation using the relevant Building Price Index.

Impairment

Administered items are accounted for on the same basis and using the same policies as for
departmental items, including the application of Australian Accounting Standards.

Depreciation

Depreciable infrastructure and plant and equipment assets are written-down over their estimated useful
lives using the straight-line method of depreciation.

2018 2017
Infrastructure 7 to 400 years 7 to 400 years
Plant and equipment 3 to 80 years 3 to 80 years

Water Entitlements

The department acquires water entitlements in the Murray Darling Basin to achieve the Government's
environmental policy objectives under the Water Act 2007.

Commonwealth water entitlements are held for non-commercial, long term environmental purposes,
beyond the shorter term weather and accounting cycles, the benefits of which are not being captured for
accounting purposes. As the Commonwealth's water entitlement holdings continue to increase, so does
the strategic importance of demonstrating a robust valuation assessment.

Under the Federal Financial Relations Framework, National Partnership Payments are processed
centrally by the Department of the Treasury and paid directly to each state treasury for delivery of
services, including water efficiency projects that generate water savings.

State Treasuries are responsible for distributing the funding within their jurisdiction. In the
Commonwealth, the Treasurer is accountable for the appropriations, estimates and payments under the
framework. For National Partnership agreements, the primary responsibility for policy is with the relevant
portfolio Minister. The department receives water entitlements 'free of charge' in accordance with the
terms and conditions of payments made by the Treasury under the National Partnership on Water for
the Future (refer to Note 16D).

Under the various water-related programs, there are a number of projects which improve the efficiency
of irrigation infrastructure and generate savings in the use of water. As part of these arrangements, the
Australian Government will receive a share of that water saving in the form of water entitlements for use
in delivering the Government's environmental watering objectives. Water entitlements acquired as a
result of water savings arising from projects funded to improve the efficiency of water use are accounted
for in accordance with the relevant Australian Accounting Standards.
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Once the department has finalised water entitlements as an asset in use, the Water Act 2007 requires
the department to transfer the entitlements to the Commonwealth Environmental Water Holder. The
department recognises the transfer of the asset as an expense in accordance with the FRR.

The department's remaining water entittement holdings are as a result of the Living Murray Initiative
(LMI) joint operation and entitlements that are not yet classified as in use.

The department values water entittements at cost, in the absence of an active market, in accordance
with AASB 138 Intangible Assets. Water entitlements are classified as indefinite life intangible assets as
there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the assets are expected to generate future
economic benefits. Consistent with AASB 136 Impairment of Assets and the FRR, they are subject to
annual impairment testing.

Under AASB 136, the impairment test is carried out by comparing the carrying amount (per the
department's asset register) to the recoverable amount of the water entitlements. The recoverable
amount of the water entitlements is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. The
recoverable amount calculation is performed at the lowest practical level, taking into account the quality
and availability of data.

The department's valuation methodology calculates the recoverable amount of the water entitlements
based on the best information available to reflect the amount that an entity could obtain from the
disposal of the water entitlements in an arm's length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties.
This approach is consistent with AASB 136.

The determination of impairment and impairment reversals is conducted annually by an independent
expert, using the volume-weighted average price on publicly reported market information on State
registers reported from 1 July 2017 to 31 May 2018.

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods will be reversed if there is any indication that the
impairment may no longer exist or may have decreased. The increased carrying amount attributable to a
reversal of an impairment loss shall not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
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Note 19: Administered — Payables

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Note 19A: Levy Disbursements and Commonwealth Contributions
Levy disbursements 34 891 28 419
Commonwealth contributions 66 305 63 961
Total levy disbursements and Commonwealth contributions 101 196 92 380
Note 19B: Grants
Non-profit organisations 2 385 7 005
State and Territory Governments 754 280
Australian Government entities (related parties) 150 522
Other 79 60
Total grants 3 368 7 867
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Note 20: Administered — Contingent Assets and Liabilities

Quantifiable Contingencies
There were no quantifiable contingent assets or contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2018 (2017: Nil).
Unqguantifiable Contingencies

The Australian Government encourages expenditure on research and development to increase the
competitiveness and sustainability of industries within Australia. Under several Acts, the Commonwealth provides
contributions to a number of nominated entities responsible for undertaking research and development activities
in respect of portfolio industries. These contributions are typically made on a matching basis. Under legislation,
entities are eligible for matching contributions which are subject to annual “caps” based on the total cumulative
amount of levies collected, amounts spent on qualifying research and development and the annual level of the
determined gross value of production. The operation of these annual caps can result in annual entitlements being
limited to less than full cumulative levy collections and/or cumulative qualifying research and development
expenditure. However, unpaid balances may still be claimable, depending on the level of the caps determined in
future years and are therefore carried forward from year to year.

At 30 June 2018, the Commonwealth had a maximum potential liability in respect of matching payments of
approximately $599 million (30 June 2017: $533 million). The Commonwealth's actual future liability is contingent
on a combination of several currently indeterminable independent factors which are beyond the control of both
the department and the recipient entities, in particular the future annual levels of levy collections and determined
gross values of production. The likelihood of meeting the eligibility requirements and the amount of future
payments is uncertain. Hence, the total liability is considered unquantifiable.

Accounting policy

Indemnities

At the time of completion of the financial statements, there was no reason to believe that the indemnities would
be called upon, and no liability has been recognised.
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Note 21: Administered — Financial Instruments

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Note 21A: Categories of Financial Instruments
Financial Assets
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivalents 589 698 166 435
Goods and services 459 803
Loans to State and Territory Governments 804 539 696 504
Interest receivable from loans 3982 2603
Other receivables 10 801 10 227
Total loans and receivables 1409 479 876 572
Available-for-sale financial assets
Other investments 400 222 369 513
Total available-for-sale financial assets 400 222 369 513
Total financial assets 1809 701 1246 085
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Trade creditors 298 1504
Grants payable 3368 7 867
Total financial liabilities at amortised cost 3 666 9371
Total financial liabilities 3 666 9371

1. The net income from interest revenue for loans and receivables in 2018 is $23 919 000 (2017: $15 689 000).
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Note 22: Administered — Appropriations

Note 22A: Annual and Unspent Appropriations (‘Recoverable GST exclusive'

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Ordinary annual services
Opening unspent appropriation balance 71 254 67 247
Annual Appropriation - Operating 548 867 5581555
PGPA Act section 74 receipts 1181 623
PGPA Act section 75 transfers (3 000) -
PGPA Act section 51 determinations® (56 394) (85601)
Prior years Appropriation Acts repealed (5755) -
Total available appropriation 556 153 535 824
Appropriation applied (current and prior years) (419 202) (464 570)
Closing unspent appropriation balance 136 951 71 254
Balance comprises appropriations as follows:
Appropriation Act (No.1) 2012-137 - 4934
Appropriation Act (No.1) 2013-14" - 821
Appropriation Act (No.1) 2016-172 23 250 41 607
Appropriation Act (No.3) 2016-17 - 3224
Supply Act (No.1) 2016-172 1750 20 668
Appropriation Act (No.1) 2017-182 70 257 -
Appropriation Act (No.3) 2017-18 41 644 -
Appropriation Act (No.5) 2017-18 50 -
Total unspent appropriation - ordinary annual services 136 951 71254

The variance between amounts appropriated in 2018 and appropriation applied is $127 846 000.
" Appropriation Act (No.1) 2012-13 and Appropriation Act (No.1) 2013-14 (total of $5 755 000)
were repealed by Appropriation Act (No.4) 2017-18 effective 28 March 2018 .
2 A portion of these appropriations amounting to $25 000 000 has been administratively quarantined.

Other services

Opening unspent appropriation balance 504 968 296 885
Annual appropriation - States, ACT, NT and Local government - 2100
Annual appropriation - Administered assets and liabilities 671 000 487 045
PGPA Act section 75 transfers (50 000) -
Prior year PGPA Act section 75 transfers (50 000) -
PGPA Act section 51 determinations?® (140 127) -
Prior years Appropriation Acts repealed (182 780) -

Total available appropriation 753 061 786 030

Appropriation applied (current and prior years) (307 022) (281062)

Closing unspent appropriation balance 446 039 504 968

Balance comprises appropriations as follows:

Appropriation Act (No.2) 2013-14" - 35 000
Appropriation Act (No.2) 2014-15° - 137 781
Appropriation Act (No.4) 2014-152 - 10 000
Appropriation Act (No.2) 2015-16 69 103 69 104
Appropriation Act (No.2) 2016-17 134 104 184 232
Supply Act (No.2) 2016-17 68 851 68 851
Appropriation Act (No.2) 2017-18 173 981 -
Total unspent appropriation - other services 446 039 504 968

The variance between amounts appropriated in 2018 and appropriation applied is $313 978 000.
" Appropriation Act (No.2) 2013-14 was repealed by Appropriation Act (No.4) 2017-18 (total $35 000 000)
effective 28 March 2018.
2 Appropriation Act (No.2) 2014-15 and Appropriation Act (No.4) 2014-15 (total $147 780 000)
self-repealed effective 1 July 2017.
3 Appropriations reduced under Section 51 of the PGPA Act include $164 365 000 relating to current year and
$32 156 434 from prior year administered items.

Total unspent appropriation 582 990 576 222

Department of Agriculture and Water Resources

208 Annual report 2017-18



Financial Statements

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND WATER RESOURCES
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 22B: Special Appropriations (‘Recoverable GST exclusive')

Appropriation applied

2018 2017
Authority $'000 $'000
Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals (Administration) Act 1992 (32 400) ( 34 460)
Australian Animal Health Council (Live-stock Industries) Funding Act 1996 (7 568) (7519)
Australian Grape and Wine Authority Act 2013° - (33 029)
Australian Meat and Live-stock Industry Act 1997 (198 911) (173 707)
Dairy Produce Act 1986 (49 149) (57 968)
Egg Industry Service Provision Act 2002 (10 357) (9763)
Farm Household Support Act 2014" (34 752) (61601)
Forestry Marketing and Research and Development Services Act 2007 (12 456) (11913)
Horticulture Marketing and Research and Development Services Act 2000 (107 675) (104 878)
Pig Industry Act 2001 (22 906) (21262)
Plant Health Australia (Plant Industries) Funding Act 2002 (9 135) (7 026)
Primary Industries Research and Development Act 1989 (257 778) (249 722)
Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013 (1899) (1445)
Sugar Research and Development Services Act 2013 (31709) (32662)
Water Act 2007 ? (430 000) (110 000)
Wine Australia Act 2013 3 (35802) -
Wool Services Privatisation Act 2000 (85977) (73 001)
Total special appropriations applied (1328 474) (1989 956)

" The Department of Human Services spends money from the Consolidated Revenue Fund (CRF) on behalf of
the department. The amount of $34 752 000 (2017: $61 601 000) was spent from the Farm Household Support
Act 2014 under this arrangement.

2 The limit for 2018 was $430 000 000 (2017: $110 000 000), No appropriation was lapsed (2017: nil).

3 The legislation title for Australian Grape and Wine Authority Act 2013 was changed to Wine Australia Act 2013
effective from 7th November 2017.

The following special appropriations had zero transactions and budgets during the reporting and comparative
years:

Australian Meat and Live-stock Industry (Repeals and Consequential Provisions) Act 1997

Dairy Industry Service Reform Act 2003

Egg Industry Service Provision (Transitional and Consequential Provisions) Act 2002

Public Governance, Performance and Accountability (Consequential and Transitional Provisions) Act 2014

Sewerage Agreements Act 1973
Sewerage Agreements Act 1974
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Note 23: Administered — Special accounts

Water for the
Natural Resources Environment Special
Management’ Account?
2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance brought forward from previous period 2777 2370 158 805 50 595
Increases 889 3 660 430 000 110 000
Total increases 889 3 660 430 000 110 000
Available for payments 3 666 6 030 588 805 160 595
Administered decr (1.076) (3 253) (6959) (1790)
Total decreases (1.076) (3 253) (6 959) (1.790)
Total balance carried to the next period 2 590 2777 581 846 158 805
Balance made up of:
Cash held in the Official Public Account 2590 2777 581 846 158 805
Total balance carried to the next period 2 590 2777 581 846 158 805

" Appropriation: Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013 section 80.
Establishing Instrument: Natural Resources Management (Financial Assistance) Act 1992 section 11.

Purpose: For the purposes of granting financial assistance in connection with projects relating to natural
resources management.

2 Appropriation: Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013 section 80.
Establishing Instrument: Water Act 2007 section 86AB.

Purpose: For the purpose of improving the water efficiency of irrigation infrastructure and improving delivery and
storage of environmental water supply within the Murray Darling Basin.
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Water Efficiency
Labelling Scheme Water Resources Special
Account’ Account 20162
2018 2017 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance brought forward from previous period 3 844 3340 994 -
Increases 1922 1947 394 1630
Total incr 1922 1947 394 1630
Available for payments 5766 5287 1388 1630
Administered decr: (1494) (1443) ( 413) ( 636)
Total decreases (1494) (1443) ( 413) ( 636)
Total balance carried to the next period 4272 3844 975 994
Balance made up of:
Cash held in the Official Public Account 4272 3844 975 994
Total balance carried to the next period 4272 3844 975 994

Appropriation: Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013 section 80.
Establishing Instrument: Water Efficiency Labelling and Standards Act 2005 section 64.

Purpose: For the purpose of conserving water by reducing demand through the provision of water efficiency
information about water-using products and promoting the adoption of efficient water-saving techniques.

2 Appropriation: Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013 section 78.

Establishing Instrument: PGPA Act (Water Resources Special Account 2016 - Establishment) Determination
2016/01.

Purpose: For the purpose of supporting inter-governmental activities relating to water.

Note: This special account was established on 31 August 2016.

The department has responsibility for the National Cattle Disease Eradication Special Account. For the year
ended 30 June 2018, the total balance carried to the next period was $15 161 (2017: $15 161). There were no
transactions debited or credited to the account during the current or prior reporting period.

Appropriation: Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013 section 80.
Establishing Instrument: National Cattle Disease Eradication Act 1991 section 4.

Purpose: For the purpose of the eradication of any disease of cattle that is endemic in Australia.

The department has responsibility for the Building Australia Fund Water Portfolio Special Account. For the year
ended 30 June 2018, the account had a nil balance and there were no transactions debited or credited to it during
the current or prior reporting period.

Appropriation: Public Governance, Performance and Accountability Act 2013 section 80.
Establishing Instrument: Nation-building Funds Act 2008 section 82.

Purpose: For the purpose of creating and developing water infrastructure.
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Note 24: Interest in Cooperative Research Centre

The Cooperative Research Centres Program, launched in 1990 by the Commonwealth Government, was
established to assist two or more collaborators to carry out research contributing to the development of
internationally competitive industry sectors. The program supports long term high quality research, improved links
between research and application, and stimulation of education and training. The original agreement, that expired
on 1 July 2012, for the Cooperative Research Centre for National Plant Biosecurity was for seven years.

The subsequent five year agreement amended the name to the Plant Biosecurity Cooperative Research Centres
(PBCRC) ended on 30 June 2018. The department’s interest in the PBCRC for the year ending
30 June 2018 was 1.6 percent (2017: 0.8 percent).

During the financial year the department’s total cash and in kind contributions to the PBCRC from its own
resources was $309 425 (2017 actual: $213 869).

The department’s contributions and expenses are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The
department’s total contribution for the life of the Cooperative Research Centres listed above was
$2 552 621 as at the end of 2018 (2017 actual: $2 243 196).

The department now facilitates plant biosecurity research, development and extension through the Plant
Biosecurity Research Initiative (PBRI).
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